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Dear Malcolm
SCOTTISH LAW COMMISSION REPORT 203: INTEREST ON DEBT AND DAMAGES

Ministers are very grateful to the Scottish Law Commission for Report 203 on Interest on Debt and Damages and the draft Interest (Scotland) Bill.   We have considered this report and the outcome of our consultation.    I am writing to advise you that the Scottish Government does not intend to implement the report.

The Scottish Law Commission’s report is at http://www.scotlawcom.gov.uk/download_file/view/385/
The Scottish Government’s consultation on the proposal is at http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2008/01/15144204/0
The non-confidential responses to our consultation are at http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2008/05/15104808/0 

Our analysis of the responses is at http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2008/05/16121025/0 

Our consultation showed that there were a number of concerns with the proposals.   For example, points were raised about:

· the potential impact of the proposals on backdated public sector pay awards;

· the potential impact of the proposals on the insurance industry;

· the potential need for more exemptions in respect of a number of bills which individuals pay to companies (as well as utility bills, there were suggestions that home care charges and repairs and factoring fees might need to be exempted as well);

· the potential need for a de minimis provision;

· cases where a small business may have received goods or services for supply to a third party and would have to wait for payment before settling with the original supplier.   This could mean that the small business might be subject to demands for payment of interest.

As well as points raised by consultees, the Scottish Government itself would have concerns about a number of the specific proposals in the SLC’s report.   For example, recommendation 5 after paragraph 3.19 of the report suggests that “statutory interest should run on a contractual debt even where the amount of the debt, if found to be due, remains unascertained pending determination by a third party”.  As paragraph 3.19 of the report itself says, “this is a situation in which it may well be that no criticism can be made of the debtor”.   It is entirely possible, therefore, that applying “statutory interest” in such cases would be seen as unfair.

In another area, paragraphs 3.52 and 3.53 of the report discuss the situation a pensioner might be in if he or she is overpaid his pension and spends the money in good faith on food.   The conclusion reached is that there could be judicial discretion to waive interest in a number of cases, by reason of the conduct of the creditor.  This does appear to suggest, though, that an application to the court would be needed.   This seems a complicated solution for the pensioner.

The  draft Bill would have very wide application.   Subject to some exceptions, it would apply to all contractual debt and to damages.  Therefore, it would apply where individuals owe money to companies or to public bodies as well as to commercial debt.   Our consultation suggested that there would have to be a number of exemptions.  This would bring its own workload for the Government.  More fundamentally, though, it could increase uncertainty about the law in this area.  We could have a general rule but with a very large (and potentially increasing) number of exemptions.  And, in time, there could well be debate about whether a particular debt fell within one of the exemptions or not.

Therefore, we do not intend to implement the SLC’s report and we will update the Scottish Government website accordingly.  However, as well as provisions on contractual debt, the draft Bill also contains provisions on interest on damages.   We will consider these provisions when we come to reform the law on damages generally.

Yours sincerely
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